Washburn University General Faculty Minutes November 11, 2020

I. CALL TO ORDER

Dr. Farley called the meeting to order at 3:33 via zoom.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the February 26, 2020 General Faculty meeting. The minutes were approved unanimously.

III. OPENING REMARKS

A. From the President

- 1. President Farley took the opportunity to honor those who have served in the military on Veterans day.
- 2. Faculty were updated regarding the budgets for 2020-2021 and 2021-2022. Funding for Washburn University comes from three sources: the state, sales tax, and tuition. During the pandemic, other moneys being used come from the CARES Act and frozen positions and travel.
- 3. The number of cases of Coronavirus in Shawnee County and on campus have increased in the last few weeks. Student life, in coordination with the student health center, are doing much to keep the community safe.
- 4. The foundation and alumni association have been doing due diligence to raise funds for WU. Funding for the new law school has been raised; the project should start in the spring of 2021. These offices have also provided for string lights to be hung on campus to create a winter atmosphere for holiday activities.

B. From the Vice President for Academic Affairs

 Dr. Mazachek echoed President Farley's remarks regarding the great work being done by student health, Jennifer Ball and team, as well as the faculty across campus. Faculty were encouraged to reach out and make sure that students are taking time to register for courses before the winter break.

IV. NEW BUSINESS

Requiring General Faculty Approval

A.21-2 B.A.in Musical Theatre

Item was moved to approve, seconded and passed with no votes against.

Information Items

A.1-1 Temporary Academic Policy changes due to Extraordinary

Circumstances of COVID19 for Fall 2020 and Spring 2021 Semesters

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS

- Apieron will still be happening this spring, discussions to come soon
- The inaugural Homeland Security Series, sponsored by alumni from the criminal justice department, begins this week.
- Homecoming activities will be taking place; come support the students.

VI. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 4:30

FACULTY AGENDA ITEM

Date: November 16, 2020

Submitted by: Paul Byrne x1597

SUBJECT: Proposed Faculty Statement on Support for Freedom of Expression

Description: The proposal is that the General Faculty formally pass a statement of its support of the Freedom of Expression statement (below) passed by the Freedom of Expression Taskforce in the Spring of 2018.

Rationale: In 2018, the Freedom of Expression Taskforce met throughout the spring semester to draft a Freedom of Expression Statement for Washburn University. The taskforce was made up of faculty representing schools and units across the Washburn campus, as well as, administrators and a representative from Washburn Tech. The task force voted in favor of the attached statement and passed it on to the administration. Aside from a brief reconstitution of the task force in the fall of 2019, Washburn University has yet to support a statement of support of free expression. While this is their prerogative, the Faculty Senate represents the voice of the faculty. Without the unequivocal knowledge that Washburn University is a community which values the free expression of ideas, many faculty and students may be hesitant to participate in the process by which the advancement of knowledge takes place. For students, this hesitancy is a trait they may take with them throughout their careers. Washburn faculty should voice their commitment to promote and support the free expression of ideas.

Financial Implications: None Proposed Effective Date: N/A

Request for Action: Approval by AAC, FS and General Faculty

Approved by: AAC 11/16/2020

Faculty Senate 11/30/2020 General Faculty on date

Attachments Yes □ No □

¹ I only added the title and first paragraph to clarify that this is a statement of the faculty.

Washburn University Faculty Statement on Freedom of Expression

Washburn University General Faculty supports the following statement on freedom of expression drafted by the Freedom of Expression Task Force in Fall 2018.²

From its inception, Washburn University has been an institution dedicated to the rights of all people to an education. In the Articles of Association for then-Lincoln College in 1865, the Founders professed their purpose "to promote the diffusion of knowledge," "to afford all classes, without distinction of color, the advantages of a liberal education," and "to make [the institution] an engine for the furtherance of those ideas of civil . . . liberty." At the announcement of its opening, President of the Board of trustees Peter McVicar declared the intention and purpose of the college to "prepare young men and women . . . for the earnest duties and practical relations of life."

It is the belief of Washburn University that a part of the preparation includes the preservation of freedom of expression and open discussion.

Because Washburn University is committed to free and open inquiry in all matters, it guarantees all members of the Washburn University community the broadest possible latitude to speak, write, listen, challenge, and learn. Except insofar as limitations on that freedom are necessary to the functioning of Washburn University, Washburn University fully respects and supports the freedom of all members of the Washburn University community "to discuss any problem that presents itself."

Of course, the ideas of different members of the Washburn University community will often and quite naturally conflict, and some individuals' ideas will even conflict with the University's values and principles. But it is not the proper role of Washburn University to attempt to shield individuals from ideas and opinions they find unwelcome, disagreeable, or even deeply offensive.

Although Washburn University greatly values civility and inclusion, and although all members of the Washburn University community share in the responsibility for maintaining a climate of mutual respect, concerns about civility and mutual respect can never be used as a justification for closing off discussion of ideas, however offensive or disagreeable those ideas may be to some members of our community.

The freedom to debate and discuss the merits of competing ideas does not, of course, mean that individuals may say whatever they wish, wherever they wish. Washburn University may restrict expression that violates the law, that falsely defames a specific individual, that constitutes a genuine threat or harassment, that unjustifiably invades substantial privacy or confidentiality interests, or that is otherwise directly incompatible with the functioning of Washburn University. In addition, Washburn University may reasonably regulate the time, place, and manner of expression to ensure that it does not disrupt the ordinary activities of Washburn University. But these are narrow exceptions to the general principle of freedom of expression, and it is vitally

² This statement was adapted from the University of Chicago <u>Statement on Freedom of Expression</u> and the FIRE <u>Model Freedom of Expression Resolution.</u>

important that these exceptions never be used in a manner that is inconsistent with Washburn University's commitment to a completely free and open discussion of ideas.

In a word, Washburn University's fundamental commitment is to the principle that debate or deliberation may not be suppressed because the ideas put forth are thought by some or even by most members of the Washburn University community to be offensive, unwise, immoral, or wrong-headed. Controversial speech and robust debate are expected and valued on college campuses and in our society. It is for the individual members of the Washburn University community, not for Washburn University as an institution, to make those judgments for themselves, and to act on those judgments not by seeking to suppress speech, but by openly and vigorously contesting the ideas that they oppose. Indeed, fostering the ability of members of the Washburn University community to engage in such debate and deliberation in an effective and responsible manner is an essential part of Washburn University's educational mission. With this in mind, no administrative or academic unit or committee shall implement a policy or undertake any action that infringes on any member of the Washburn community's freedom of speech or expression, nor shall the Washburn Student Government Association, or any of its committees.

As a corollary to Washburn University's commitment to protect and promote free expression, members of the Washburn University community must also act in conformity with the principle of free expression. Although members of the Washburn University community are free to criticize, contest, or lawfully protest the views expressed on campus, and to criticize, contest, or lawfully protest speakers who are invited to express their views on campus, they may not obstruct or otherwise interfere with the freedom of others to express views they reject or even loathe. To this end, Washburn University has a solemn responsibility not only to promote a lively and fearless freedom of debate and deliberation, but also to protect that freedom when others attempt to restrict it.